
Page 1 of 1 

 

November 24, 2014 

Special City Council  

Workshop and Meeting        

Agenda 
                                    
 
 
                                                                             
 

5:30 P.M.  Workshop  

A. Conservation Commission and Tree Harvesting – Denis D’Auteuil (60 minutes)  

B. Agriculture Zone Study Plan – Doug Greene (60 minutes) 
 

After each workshop item is presented, the public will be given an opportunity to comment.  

 

7:30 P.M. Special City Council Meeting 

 

Pledge of Allegiance    

I. Executive Session 

 Discussion regarding a personnel matter, pursuant to 1 M.R.S.A. §405(6)(A) with possible 

action to follow. 
 

Executive Session:  On occasion, the City Council discusses matters which are required or allowed by State law to be considered 

in executive session.  Executive sessions are not open to the public.  The matters that are discussed in executive session are 

required to be kept confidential until they become a matter of public discussion.  In order to go into executive session, a Councilor 

must make a motion in public.  The motion must be recorded, and 3/5 of the members of the Council must vote to go into 

executive session.  An executive session is not required to be scheduled in advance as an agenda item, although when it is known 

at the time that the agenda is finalized, it will be listed on the agenda. The only topics which may be discussed in executive session 

are those that fall within one of the categories set forth in Title 1 M.R.S.A. Section 405(6).  Those applicable to municipal 

government are: 

A. Discussion of personnel issues 

B. Discussion or consideration by a school board of suspension of expulsion 

C. Discussion or consideration of the condition, acquisition or the use of real or personal property permanently attached to 

real property or interests therein or disposition of publicly held property or economic development only if premature 

disclosures of the information would prejudice the competitive or bargaining position of the body or agency   

D. Labor contracts 

E. Contemplated litigation 

F. Discussions of information contained in records made, maintained or received by a body or agency when access by the 

general public to those records is prohibited by statute; 

G. Discussion or approval of the content of examinations administered by a body or agency for licensing, permitting or 

employment purposes; consultation between a body or agency and any entity that provides examination services to that 

body or agency regarding the content of an examination; and review of examinations with the person examined; and 

H. Consultations between municipal officers and a code enforcement officer representing the municipality pursuant to Title 

30-A, section 4452, subsection 1, paragraph in the prosecution of an enforcement matter pending in District Court when 

the consultation relates to that pending enforcement matter.  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 



City Council 

Information Sheet City of Auburn 

 

 

  

 
 

 

Subject: Conservation Commission and Tree Harvesting  

 

Information: City staff will present two new ordinances for consideration by the City Council as well as 

recommended updates to an existing ordinance.   The ordinances would create a conservation commission and 

establish improved standards for the management and maintenance of city owned trees, forests, and parks. 

 

Advantages:   

 With the changes of our Parks and Recreation Advisory Board being re-focused on recreation and 

special events the conservation commission would provide needed focus on the city of Auburn’s 

parks, open spaces, shade trees, and forests. 

 By establishing a conservation commission there are opportunities to build plans for conserving 

Auburn’s natural resources, as laid out in the comprehensive plan, and place a focus on forests in the 

city of Auburn.  

 The conservation commission would set its work plan based on broader policy issues related to parks, 

open spaces, shade trees, and forests.  These issues would be reviewed and managed under one 

committee, rather than the possibility it could be multiple committees.   

 Some of the pending issues would be addressed holistically, including providing recommendations on 

policies regarding the maintenance and harvesting of all city shade trees, parks, and forests in the City of 

Auburn, and how the city should pursue forest management. 

 The tree maintenance ordinance would aide in the protection of all city owned trees and create an 

appeals process for residents.   

 Adoption of the tree maintenance ordinance would establish a process for proper allocation of revenues 

produced from the maintenance or harvesting of any city owned tree or forest. 

 

Disadvantages:  

 The current structure of the Lewiston and Auburn Forest Board is focused on the trees and forests within 

the city of Auburn owned by the city.  With the recent changes in the Parks and Recreation Board 

focusing on Recreation and Special Events this leaves no oversight from any board or committee on our 

city parks and open spaces. 

 The current tree maintenance ordinances do not have an appeals process for decisions made by the City 

Arborist, nor do they address the issues around the tree harvesting revenues. 

 As we continue to look at policy issues revolving around natural resources, as laid out in the 

comprehensive plan, implementation of these policies could be slowed down by needing to work with 

multiple committees.   

 

 

City Budgetary Impacts: None 

 

 

Staff Recommended Action: Staff recommends that the Conservation Commission Ordinance and the Tree 

Maintenance Ordinance be adopted by the City Council.  Staff also recommends that current Tree Maintenance 

ordinance be updated and adopted with the proposed language.  

Council Workshop or Meeting Date: 11/24/2014    

Author:   Denis D’Auteuil 



City Council 

Information Sheet City of Auburn 

 

 

Previous Meetings and History:  

 April 1, 2013 an ordinance proposed by our Lewiston/Auburn Forest Board was presented to the City 

Council.  The Forest Board presented a very similar ordinance in Lewiston and the Lewiston Council 

adopted the ordinance.  No action was taken by the Auburn City Council. 

 On December 16, 2013 the City Council passed a resolve that placed a 6 month moratorium on all tree 

harvests in the city.  They passed the resolve on December 16, 2013 and the moratorium expired on June 

14, 2014.   

 August 5, 2013 the Mayor submitted a memo to the City Council that outlined changes to the Parks and 

Recreation Board and this resulted in the creation of the Recreation and Special Events Advisory Board.  

Along with those changes staff was asked to create a Conservation Commission. 

 

 

Attachments:  

 

1. Proposed Tree Maintenance Ordinance 

2. Summary of Community Cords program revenues and expenses 

3. Current Tree Maintenance Ordinance with proposed changes 

4. Memo on Public Services Committees dated August 5, 2013 

5. Proposed Conservation Commission Ordinance 

6. State Statute on Conservation Commissions 

7. Resolve establishing Lewiston/Auburn Community Forest Board 

8. Comprehensive Plan – Advances Goals/Strategies laid out in Part A : Natural Resources 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



City of Auburn 

Shade Tree Ordinance 

Section 1 – Preamble. 

The City of Auburn hereby adopts the following shade tree maintenance ordinance in order to 

regulate the removal, pruning, and planting and maintenance of trees within or upon the limits of any city 

road or public right of way and of trees located on public property. 

 

Section 2 – Authority. 

This ordinance is enacted pursuant to the Home Rule Authority granted to the city in accordance 

with the provisions of 30-A M.R.S.A. §3001. 

 

Section 3 – Definitions. 

 

3.1 Person-Any individual, person, firm, corporation, association, partnership or 

organization 

 

3.2 Public Trees-All trees located upon any public property owned by the city, including 

public property currently used by any individual departments. 

 

3.3 Public Shade Trees-All trees within or upon the limits of any city road, public right of 

way, or any highway within the meaning of 30-A M.R.S.A. §3281. 

 

3.4 Municipal Arborist-An official of the city appointed by the city manager who shall have 

the care and control of all public shade trees upon and along city roads and public rights of 

way and in the parks and public lands of the city, and that official shall enforce all laws 

relating to the preservation and maintenance of public shade trees and public trees.  Any 

term or word of this ordinance which is not defined in this section shall have a meaning 

consistent with Title 30-A, M.R.S.A., to the extent that such term is defined in that Title; 

any terms that are not defined in that Title shall have a meaning consistent with common 

usage. 

 

Section 4 - Appointment of municipal arborist. 

The city manager shall appoint the municipal arborist who shall administer this ordinance in coordination  

with such other municipal agencies/departments as now or may in the future share in the responsibility of 

caring for and maintaining the community forest.  The municipal arborist shall have appropriate training 

and skill in performing urban forestry.  The municipal arborist shall at all times during his or her 

employment hold a valid arborist’s license issued by the State of Maine. 

 

Section 5 – Harvest revenues.  
If and when revenues generated from any timber harvests exceed the expense of conducting that harvest, 

the surplus revenues will be deposited in a dedicated Public Shade Tree Revenue account.  Proposed 

expenditures of funds from this account shall be presented to the city council each fiscal year during the 

annual budgetary process.  Expenditures related to the maintenance, replacement and improvement of 

public shade trees and the Community Cords Program should be given priority while budgeting for 

expenditures from the Public Shade Tree Revenue account.   

 

Section 6 – Prohibition. 

No person shall prune, plant, cut down, remove, or alter a public shade tree or a public tree unless that person 

has first obtained the consent of the municipal arborist for those actions. 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 
 

 

Section 7 - Request for consent from municipal arborist. 
7.1 Written Request- Any person who intends to prune, plant, cut down, remove, or alter a public shade 

tree or public tree shall make a written request to the municipal arborist and shall state specifically the 

action intended to be taken by that person concerning a public shade tree or public tree. 

 

7.2 Written Decision- Within ten (10) days of receipt of a written request pursuant to section 7.1 the 

municipal arborist shall approve the request, approve the request with conditions, or deny the request in a 

written decision mailed or hand delivered to the person making the request. 

 

The municipal arborist shall have the authority to deny or impose reasonable conditions upon approval of 

the request in order to preserve and maintain the health and beauty of public shade trees or public trees and 

the places where such trees are located; and in order to protect the public safety and the safety and 

convenience of the city roads, highways, public rights of way, and public lands.  Any permit granted 

shall contain a definite date of expiration and may contain conditions attached thereto by the 

municipal arborist. 
 

 

Section 8 – Appeal. 

In the event that a person is aggrieved by the decision of the Municipal Arborist, then such a person 

shall have the right to appeal the notice of the municipal arborist to the city council within ten (10) days of 

the date of the notice of the municipal arborist. The appeal shall be made in writing and shall set forth 

specifically the basis for the appeal. 

Upon receipt of the written appeal by the city council, the city council may delegate the responsibility 

for hearing appeals under this ordinance to another city administrative board or city staff member. 
 

 

Section 9 - Guidelines for cutting or altering of public shade trees.  

 

  After a public hearing, the conservation commission shall have the authority to adopt, amend, or 

modify guidelines for pruning, planting, cutting, removing or altering of trees, and thereafter, the 

Municipal Arborist shall use those guidelines in making decisions pursuant to this ordinance. 

 

Section 10 – Violations and penalties. 

  

a) Any violator of any provision of this article shall be subject to a civil 

penalty payable to the city.  Each act of violation shall constitute a 

separate offense. 

 
b) Should any public tree be destroyed, the person causing the destruction shall 

also make restitution to the city in an amount equal to the cost to the city of 

removing the destroyed tree plus its replacement value. 

 

 

c) Whenever the municipal arborist determines there are reasonable grounds to 

believe there has been a violation of any provisions of this article, he/she may 

initiate enforcement proceedings in accordance with the citation system 

established in article VIII of chapter 2. 

 

d) In addition to the remedies set forth above, the municipal arborist, on behalf 



of the city, may seek an abatement of the violation, or injunctive relief, 

including an award of penalties and reasonable attorney fees, from the district 

court or the superior court. 

 

e) The court also may order a violator of this article to reimburse the city for the 

cost of any action that was necessary to correct violations of the ordinance.  If 

the city is the prevailing party in an enforcement action, it shall be awarded 

reasonable attorney’s fees and costs. 

 
 

 

Section 11 - Severability. 

The provisions of this ordinance shall be severable. If any portion of this ordinance is held to be invalid, 

the remainder of this ordinance and its application thereof shall not be affected. 

 

Section 12 - Other laws and ordinances. 

This ordinance shall not prohibit or prevent the city from pruning, cutting, altering, or removing trees when 

the pruning, cutting, alteration, or removal is ordered by the city council for the following purposes: 

 

a) To layout, alter or widen the location of city roads or highways; 

 

b) To lessen the danger of travel on city roads or highways; or 

 

c) To suppress tree pests or insects. 

 

The consent of the municipal arborist is not required for pruning, cutting or removal of trees by the city for 

the foregoing purposes set forth in Section 13 of this ordinance. The consent of the municipal arborist is also 

not required for pruning, cutting or removal of trees in connection with routine maintenance of public park 

and other public facilities which are managed by the public services department of the city. The city shall, 

however, conform to any guidelines adopted pursuant to Section 10 of this ordinance in any actions taken 

for the foregoing purposes. 

 



CITY OF AUBURN 

Auburn Publ ic  Serv ices  

296  Gracelawn Road  

 

  

  

 

 

 

 

History of Community Cords 

2010-2014 

 

Fiscal 
  

Annual 
 

Cummulative 
 Year Revenues Expenditures Balance   Balance 
 

     
 $                      2,985.00  

Beginning 
Balance 

2010  $       4,443.00   $                      257.90   $            4,185.10  
 

 $                      7,170.10  
 2011  $       1,087.60   $                  2,462.94   $          (1,375.34) 

 
 $                      5,794.76  

 2012  $     19,215.47   $                  5,168.42   $          14,047.05  
 

 $                   19,841.81  
 2013  $     15,574.23   $                  9,942.27   $            5,631.96  

 
 $                   25,473.77  

 2014  $       6,682.16   $                  8,767.67   $          (2,085.51) 
 

 $                   23,388.26  
  



Sec. 56-19. - Tree maintenance. 

The public works director or persons acting under his direction and control may enter 

upon private property at reasonable times for the purpose of detecting the presence of tree 

disease and carrying out control measures. Whenever a tree is found upon private property 

infected with the disease, or whenever a tree is found upon private property which that 

creates a hazard to the safety of persons or property, the public works director shall give 

notice in writing to the property owner advising him of the dangerous condition, and 

requesting him todemanding that the property owner have the tree removed within 30 days 

of receiving such notice, and notifying the property owner that if the requested action is not 

taken within the 30-day period the tree may be removed by the City at the expense of the 

property owner. If the requested action is not taken within the 30-day period, and if the public 

works director determines that immediate action is necessary to protect persons or property 

from the dangerous tree, he, or persons acting under his direction, may enter the premises 

and cause the dangerous tree or part thereof to be removed at the expense of the property 

owner.  A property owner may appeal the public works director’s notice to remove the tree 

within 30 days of receiving such notice to the Board of Appeals.  An adverse decision of the 

Board of Appeals may be appealed to the Superior Court within 30 days of the decision. 

 

javascript:void(0)














 

 

 

CITY OF AUBURN 

CONSERVATION COMMISSION 

 

 
Section 1. - Commission established. 

 

A conservation commission is hereby established pursuant to 30-A M.R.S.A. §§ 3261-3263 to 

consist of seven (7) members appointed by the city council, all of whom shall be residents of 

the city. The terms of office shall be three (3) years except that initial appointments after the 

date of adoption of this Ordinance shall be such that the terms of no more than three (3) members 

shall expire in any single year. For that purpose, the city council shall initially appoint three 

members for terms of one year, two members for terms of two years, and two members for terms 

of three years, such that the terms of approximately one-third of the members shall expire each 

year.  There shall be two (2) ex-officio members of the board consisting of the public works director 

or his/her designee and the municipal arborist. 

 
Section 2. -  Purpose. 

 

The purpose of the conservation commission shall be to serve as a research, advisory and 

advocacy group on environmental and conservation issues relating to the city. 

 
Section 3. - Qualifications. 

 

All members of the commission shall be selected upon the basis of their knowledge of or interest 

in conservation, environmental science or related fields. 

 
Section 4. - Powers and duties. 

 

The commission: 

 
(a) Shall keep records of its meetings and activities and make an annual report to the city 

council; 

 
(b) Shall conduct research, in conjunction with the planning board, into local land areas, 

which shall be initiated by majority votes of both the commission and the planning board; 

 
(c) Shall  seek  to  coordinate  the  activities  of conservation bodies organized for similar 

purposes; 

 

(d) May keep an index of all open areas within the city, whether publicly or privately 

owned, including open marshlands, swamps and other wetlands, for the purpose of 

obtaining information relating to the proper protection, development or use of those 

open areas. The commission may recommend to the city council or to any Board 



of the city or to any body politic or public agency of the state a program for the better 

protection, development or use of such open areas, which may include the acquisition of 

conservation easements; 

 

(e) May advertise, prepare, print and distribute books, maps, charts, plans and pamphlets 

which it considers necessary, if municipal appropriations provide financial resources to 

do so; 

 

(f) Shall undertake any other conservation or environmental activity referred to it by the 

city council. 

 

(g) May recommend to the city council the acceptance of gifts in the municipality's name 

for any of the commission's purposes. 

 

(h) Shall develop a plan for and provide advice to city staff and agencies regarding the 

management of the community forest including the anticipated impact of proposed 

development; 

 

(i) Shall raise community awareness regarding the importance of the community forest; 

 

(j) May raise funds to establish a community forest trust fund; 

 

(k) Shall adopt by-laws to govern the internal affairs of the commission; and 

 

(l) May perform such other functions as are permitted by this Code. 

 

 
Section 5. - Officers, meetings and records. 

 

(a) The  members  shall  annually  elect  from  their  membership  a  chairperson,  a  vice- 

chairperson and a secretary. 

 

(b) All meetings of the commission shall be open to the public, and notice, if required by 

law, should be provided to the public about such meetings. 

 

(c) Minutes shall be kept of all meetings. 

 
Section  6. - Limits of authority. 

 

Nothing contained within this section shall supersede the provisions of the Charter or contrary 

provisions of the Code. No powers and duties which may be exercised by conservation 

commissions under state statute which are not explicitly provided in this article may be exercised 

by the commission created herein. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Title 30-A: MUNICIPALITIES AND COUNTIES HEADING: PL 

1987, C. 737, PT. A, §2 (NEW) 
Part 2: MUNICIPALITIES HEADING: PL 1987, C. 737, PT. A, §2 (NEW) 
Subpart 5: HEALTH, WELFARE AND IMPROVEMENTS HEADING: PL 

1987, C. 737, PT. A, §2 (NEW)  
Chapter 157: PARKS, TREES AND PLAYGROUNDS HEADING: PL 

1987, C. 737, PT. A, §2 (NEW)  
Subchapter 2: CONSERVATION COMMISSIONERS HEADING: PL 

1987, C. 737, PT. A, §2 (NEW)  

 

 

§3261. Conservation commissions  

Unless otherwise provided under their home rule authority, municipalities may establish 

conservation commissions as provided in this section. [1987, c. 737, Pt. A, §2 (NEW); 
1987, c. 737, Pt. C, §106 (NEW); 1989, c. 6, (AMD); 1989, c. 9, §2 (AMD); 

1989, c. 104, Pt. C, §§8, 10 (AMD).] 

1. Appointment of commissioners.  The municipal officers may appoint at least 3, but not 

more than 7, conservation commissioners. Members shall initially be appointed for terms of one, 

2 and 3 years, such that the terms of approximately 1/3 of the members will expire each year. 

Their successors shall be appointed for terms of 3 years each. Members shall serve until the 

appointment of their successors.  

The commission may recommend to the municipal officers that associate members be 

appointed to assist the commission as the commission requires. Associate members are 

nonvoting members. Their terms of office shall be for one, 2 or 3 years.  
[ 1987, c. 737, Pt. A, §2 (NEW); 1987, c. 737, Pt. C, §106 (NEW); 1989, c. 6, 

(AMD); 1989, c. 9, §2 (AMD); 1989, c. 104, Pt. C, §§8, 10 (AMD) .]  

2. Duties of commission.  The commission shall:  

A. Keep records of its meetings and activities and make an annual report to the 

municipality; [1987, c. 737, Pt. A, §2 (NEW); 1987, c. 737, Pt. C, §106 (NEW); 
1989, c. 6, (AMD); 1989, c. 9, §2 (AMD); 1989, c. 104, Pt. C, §§8, 10 (AMD).] 

B. Conduct research, in conjunction with the planning board, if any, into the local land 

areas; [1987, c. 737, Pt. A, §2 (NEW); 1987, c. 737, Pt. C, §106 (NEW); 1989, 
c. 6, (AMD); 1989, c. 9, §2 (AMD); 1989, c. 104, Pt. C, §§8, 10 (AMD).] 

C. Seek to coordinate the activities of conservation bodies organized for similar purposes; 

and [1987, c. 737, Pt. A, §2 (NEW); 1987, c. 737, Pt. C, §106 (NEW); 1989, c. 
6, (AMD); 1989, c. 9, §2 (AMD); 1989, c. 104, Pt. C, §§8, 10 (AMD).] 

D. Keep an index of all open areas within the municipality, whether publicly or privately 

owned, including open marshlands, swamps and other wetlands, for the purpose of obtaining 

information relating to the proper protection, development or use of those open areas. The 

commission may recommend to the municipal officers or any municipal body or board, or any 

body politic or public agency of the State, a program for the better protection, development or 

use of those areas, which may include the acquisition of conservation easements.  

(1) Any body politic or public agency of the State conducting planning operations with 

respect to open areas within a municipality having a conservation commission shall notify that 

conservation commission of all plans and planning operations at least 30 days before 



implementing any action under that plan. [1987, c. 737, Pt. A, §2 (NEW); 1987, c. 
737, Pt. C, §106 (NEW); 1989, c. 6, (AMD); 1989, c. 9, §2 (AMD); 1989, c. 

104, Pt. C, §§8, 10 (AMD).] 
[ 1987, c. 737, Pt. A, §2 (NEW); 1987, c. 737, Pt. C, §106 (NEW); 1989, c. 6, 

(AMD); 1989, c. 9, §2 (AMD); 1989, c. 104, Pt. C, §§8, 10 (AMD) .]  

3. Powers of commission.  The commission may:  

A. Advertise, prepare, print and distribute books, maps, charts, plans and pamphlets which 

it considers necessary; [1987, c. 737, Pt. A, §2 (NEW); 1987, c. 737, Pt. C, §106 
(NEW); 1989, c. 6, (AMD); 1989, c. 9, §2 (AMD); 1989, c. 104, Pt. C, §§8, 10 

(AMD).] 
B. Have the care and superintendence of the public parks and, subject to the approval of the 

municipal officers, direct the expenditure of all money appropriated for the improvement of 

those parks; [1987, c. 737, Pt. A, §2 (NEW); 1987, c. 737, Pt. C, §106 (NEW); 
1989, c. 6, (AMD); 1989, c. 9, §2 (AMD); 1989, c. 104, Pt. C, §§8, 10 (AMD).] 

C. Acquire land in the municipality's name for any of the purposes set forth in this section 

with the approval of the municipal legislative body; and [1987, c. 737, Pt. A, §2 (NEW); 
1987, c. 737, Pt. C, §106 (NEW); 1989, c. 6, (AMD); 1989, c. 9, §2 (AMD); 

1989, c. 104, Pt. C, §§8, 10 (AMD).] 
D. Receive gifts in the municipality's name for any of the commission's purposes and shall 

administer the gift for those purposes subject to the terms of the gift. [1987, c. 737, Pt. A, 
§2 (NEW); 1987, c. 737, Pt. C, §106 (NEW); 1989, c. 6, (AMD); 1989, c. 9, §2 

(AMD); 1989, c. 104, Pt. C, §§8, 10 (AMD).] 
[ 1987, c. 737, Pt. A, §2 (NEW); 1987, c. 737, Pt. C, §106 (NEW); 1989, c. 6, 

(AMD); 1989, c. 9, §2 (AMD); 1989, c. 104, Pt. C, §§8, 10 (AMD) .]  

4. Park commission under previous law.  This section does not require a municipality 

which has previously created a park commission under prior law to establish a conservation 

commission. Any such park commission previously created may continue to operate as originally 

established.  
[ 1987, c. 737, Pt. A, §2 (NEW); 1987, c. 737, Pt. C, §106 (NEW); 1989, c. 6, 

(AMD); 1989, c. 9, §2 (AMD); 1989, c. 104, Pt. C, §§8, 10 (AMD) .]  

SECTION HISTORY  

1987, c. 737, §§A2,C106 (NEW). 1989, c. 6, (AMD). 1989, c. 9, §2 (AMD). 1989, 

c. 104, §§C8,10 (AMD).  

 







































City Council 

Information Sheet City of Auburn 

 

 

  

 
 

Subject: Council Initiation of a Study of the Agricultural and Resource Protection Zone 

 

Information: After nearly 60 years, it’s time to take a hard look at the City of Auburn’s Agricultural and 

Resource Protection Zone policies and regulations.  The Agriculture and Resource Protection (AG/RP) Zone 

has been in place since the early 1960’s and has done an impressive job of achieving its goals of limiting sprawl 

development, protecting Agricultural lands and environmentally sensitive areas and reserving land for future 

development.  Earlier this year, a citizen petition was filed for a text amendment in the AG/RP zone to allow the 

transfer of residences from a rural residential strip zone to the rear agriculturally zoned portion of a property.  

The text amendment was not approved but raised a number of important issues and questions. 

 What is the impact of current AG/RP zone regulations on land value and how the land is used? 

 What is the state of farming in Auburn and do current regulations hinder agriculture? 

 What is the cost of services in the agricultural zone? 

 Is the 50% income rule for new homes in the AG/RP a barrier to agriculture?  

The Planning and Development Office was asked to initiate a study to examine the current state of the AG/RP 

zone and explore what, if any, steps might be taken to create an optimum solution for farming and the city in 

general.  A proposed study is attached with this Workshop Request Sheet. 

 

Advantages: Performing a comprehensive study of the City’s Agricultural Zone will provide important data on 

existing conditions regarding how the AG/RP zone is being used and its relation to the rest of the city.  It will 

generate alternatives that will be helpful in guiding any changes if warranted.  The study could lead to an 

increase in agricultural activities.  The study could spark interest in areas designated for future growth. 

Disadvantages: The study will require hard work and time from staff.  The study may generate strong feelings 

from supporters of the current AG/RP policies and those who want to see changes.  The study may result in 

changes to the rural nature of the AG/RP zone.   

 

City Budgetary Impacts: The Study itself will not require significant funding.  Modest appropriations will be 

helpful for public notices in local papers, printing costs for meeting materials and drafts for public distribution.  

A $1,000 will cover those estimated costs.  The long range financial implications could be substantial and will 

be an important consideration of the study.   

 

Staff Recommended Action: A positive motion to initiate the proposed Ag Study and timeline.  

 

Previous Meetings and History: The citizen based Ag Text Amendment was heard by the Planning Board on 

12/10/13 and 1/14/14 with the Planning Board taking action on 2/11/14 (approved 4 to 3) to move the text 

amendment on to the City Council.  The text amendment was heard at the March 3, 2014 Council workshop, 

then 1
st
 reading on May 19, 2014 and then at the June 3, 2014 meeting, the Council turned down an Ag Text 

Amendment and directed the staff to make plans to study the City’s Agricultural and Resource Protection Zone. 

 

Attachments:  1.  Memo dated 10/2/14 

 2.  June 2, 2014 Council Minutes 

 3.  Draft Ag Study Proposal from June 2, 2014 Council Meeting 

 4.  Revised Ag Study Process Outline and Task List 

 5. Memo dated 11/19/2014 from Eric Cousens 

 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date: 11-24-2014    

Author:   Doug Greene, City Planner 













City of Auburn, Maine 
“Maine’s City of Opportunity” 

___________________________      ______ 
Office of Planning & Permitting 

60 Court Street  Suite 104  Auburn, ME 04210 

(207) 333-6600 Voice  (207) 333-6601 Automated  (207) 333-6623 Fax 

www.auburnmaine.gov 
      

 

 
 
To:    Honorable Mayor and City Councilors   

 
From: Eric J. Cousens, Deputy Director of Planning and Development 
 
Re: Ag Zone Study 
 
Date: November 19, 2014 

 

I apologize for not being available in person for the workshop on November 24th but can be 
available by phone and I know you are in very good hands with City Planner Doug Green.  
This workshop item is a follow up from the Council’s directive to review the Agricultural Zone 
Standards in a comprehensive way after Michael and Darlene Reardon organized a petition 
to amend the zoning ordinance to allow flexibility in the location of dwellings on split zoned 
residential/agricultural zoned parcels.  There are a number of changes contemplated in the 
Comprehensive Plan for the City’s Agricultural zone and it would be helpful to have input 
from all affected residents, business people, farmers and other natural resource based users 
on the land as well as some outside experts in agriculture and economic opportunities.  Doug 
has organized and outlined a process that we think will provide a great opportunity to hear 
from a wide range of interests, educate all involved in the discussions on current issues and 
trends and help Staff and the Planning Board provide a well informed set of 
recommendations for the Council in making decisions to change, or not to change the 
policies or ordinances.  We hope that Planning Board members and City Councilors will be 
part of the public discussions from the beginning and can help position Auburn for efficient 
and fiscally responsible growth, preserve vital land resources for long term economic benefits 
as well as take advantage of agriculture, recreational and natural resource based industry 
(forestry, gravel mining, etc) opportunities.  It may seem that our agricultural and downtown 
areas are far apart in distance and on the scale of land uses in Auburn, however, at the Grow 
Smart Maine conference last month John Piotti, President and CEO of Maine Farmland Trust 
highlighted some exciting synergies that can be created between farms and downtown 
economic development and how each can help the other thrive.  We can see that possibility 
here with Four Seasons Market opening in New Auburn and local restaurants featuring local 
meats and produce.   
 
This workshop is the beginning of a discussion and we hope the Council will provide input on 
the study plan and outline and express any concerns or offer any ideas on what is important 
with respect to goals of the discussion.  The Agricultural and Resource Protection Zone has 
been used for much more than just agriculture and has been very effective in accomplishing 
it’s purpose.   
 
Purpose: The purposes of this district are to allow for conservation of natural resources and open 

space land, and to encourage agricultural, forestry, and certain types of recreational uses. It is 



declared to be in the public interest that these areas should be protected and conserved because of 
their natural, aesthetic and scenic value, the need to retain and preserve open space lands, their 
economic contribution to the city, and primarily because these areas are so remote from existing 
centers of development that any added uncontrolled growth could result in an economic burden on 
the city and its inhabitants. This section shall be construed so as to effectuate the purposes outlined 
here and to prevent any attempt to establish uses which are inconsistent with these purposes or any 
attempt to evade the provisions of this division. (Chapter 60, Auburn Ordinance, AG/RP zone purpose) 

 
This study is important for the City of Auburn.  The Ag zone was a very forward thinking tool 
to manage growth and direct it to where it can be efficiently served more than 50 years ago 
under the “Farm and Forest Zone” name at the time.  It was also very effective in reducing 
the tax burden of active farms and allowing large undeveloped pieces of forest land to exist 
free from an escalating tax burden that forced many farms in southern Maine and around the 
country to carve out house lots and slowly reduce their ability to continue with farming as 
they lost land with each sale.  The only reason that the farms in Auburn did not have to 
compete with residential land values is because residential uses were not an option in the Ag 
zone and without that market, the values per acre stayed lower that residential land. That 
reduced value is not necessarily bad for the City because farms and forest lands do not put 
many kids in the school system or add much traffic to our roads and do not require much for 
municipal services.   The tax benefits to farmers may not be as relevant now as they were 
then with State Current Use Tax Programs for Tree Growth and Agriculture but making 
informed choices with an understanding of the cost of serving new development in remote 
areas is as important today as it ever has been.   
 
Staff recommends the following goals be considered during this discussion and we hope that 
the Council will provide input at the workshop if a goal should be removed or any additional 
goals should be added: 
 

1. Grow in a fiscally responsible way – ensure new development service costs don’t grow 
faster than new development tax revenues and maximize the use of existing 
infrastructure before building new infrastructure.   

2. Promote agriculture and support natural resource based industries in appropriate 
locations in a way that supports and enhances our residential and downtown urban 
areas. 

3. Others from Council? 
 
This list will help staff ask the right questions during the public input and study process.   
At a minimum the study will aim to provide a recommendation on the following: 
 

1. Are there areas that should be released from the restrictions of the Agriculture and 
Resource Protection District and that could accommodate some growth without 
burdening existing taxpayers.    

2. Should there be a separate or nuanced zone created for each purpose of the Ag 
zone?  For example protecting flood plains, reserving land for future industrial growth, 
growth control for fiscal or service cost reasons, promotion of agriculture or natural 
resource based industries? 

3. Income requirements for a home accessory to an agricultural use.  Is the 50% of 
household income outdated and is it actually preventing modern farms or agriculture 



from taking root?  Having one person farm with a spouse working off the farm earning 
a steady wage and providing insurance may be necessary if we want to see new 
farms.  How can we make it possible for this to happen without seeing substantial 
residential growth in areas that would be costly to serve. 

4. Flexibility in home locations on split zoned parcels.     
5. The Comprehensive plan recommends a number of changes to zoning district 

boundaries and some residential expansion.  We aim to package those for 
recommendations and consideration.   

6. Are there further changes to the Zoning Ordinance and Comprehensive Plan that 
could promote the goals of the Council?   

 
For today we ask the Council to provide input on the goals and process presented tonight 
and help staff add or edit the process so that a final version can be presented for a resolve at 
an upcoming meeting.  With the City Manager transition and existing initiatives it may be 
helpful to bring in some outside help with agricultural and cost of community services 
expertise.  As the process moves forward we plan to identify gaps in information and request 
funding in the upcoming budget for consultant services.  Those contracted services may not 
be critical, but would help speed the process, avoid delays on other projects and ensure that 
we (Staff, the Planning Board and the Council) have everything we need to make informed 
recommendations and decisions.  It would also allow us to better assist the Manager over the 
coming months.   
 
Residents, Staff and business people count on the Comprehensive Plan as a document that 
can help them invest time and money with a policy document in place that provides for 
predictability of outcomes.  This discussion will be one of the most important land use 
discussions that current staff and the Council have worked on together.  I am excited that we 
have a lot to gain from it and optimistic that Auburn is better positioned than most 
communities for agricultural growth due to the protections afforded by the existing AG zone.  
This discussion is timely and there is room for improvements that could help promote 
agriculture.  The trick will be to carefully and thoughtfully consider any unintended 
consequences that could hurt Auburn in the future.   
 

Please provide input on the goals and process presented on the 24th and help staff add to or 
edit the process so that a final version can be presented for a resolve at an upcoming 
meeting. 



City Council 

Information Sheet City of Auburn 

 

 

  Council Meeting Date: 11/24/2014  

 

  Subject: Executive Session  

 

Information: Discussion regarding a personnel matter, pursuant to 1 M.R.S.A. Section 405(6)(A). 

 
Executive Session:  On occasion, the City Council discusses matters which are required or allowed by State law to be considered in executive 

session.  Executive sessions are not open to the public.  The matters that are discussed in executive session are required to be kept confidential 

until they become a matter of public discussion.  In order to go into executive session, a Councilor must make a motion in public.  The motion 

must be recorded, and 3/5 of the members of the Council must vote to go into executive session.  An executive session is not required to be 

scheduled in advance as an agenda item, although when it is known at the time that the agenda is finalized, it will be listed on the agenda. The 

only topics which may be discussed in executive session are those that fall within one of the categories set forth in Title 1 M.R.S.A. Section 

405(6).  Those applicable to municipal government are: 

 

A. Discussion or consideration of the employment, appointment, assignment, duties, promotion, demotion, compensation, evaluation, 

disciplining, resignation or dismissal of an individual or group of public officials, appointees or employees of the body or agency or the 

investigation or hearing of charges or complaints against a person or persons subject to the following conditions:  

(1) An executive session may be held only if public discussion could be reasonably expected to cause damage to the individual's 

reputation or the individual's right to privacy would be violated; 

(2) Any person charged or investigated must be permitted to be present at an executive session if that person so desires; 

(3) Any person charged or investigated may request in writing that the investigation or hearing of charges or complaints against that 

person be conducted in open session. A request, if made to the agency, must be honored; and  

(4) Any person bringing charges, complaints or allegations of misconduct against the individual under discussion must be permitted to be 

present. 

This paragraph does not apply to discussion of a budget or budget proposal;  

 

B. Discussion or consideration by a school board of suspension or expulsion of a public school student or a student at a private school, the 

cost of whose education is paid from public funds, as long as:  

(1) The student and legal counsel and, if the student is a minor, the student's parents or legal guardians are permitted to be present at an 

executive session if the student, parents or guardians so desire;  

 

C. Discussion or consideration of the condition, acquisition or the use of real or personal property permanently attached to real property 

or interests therein or disposition of publicly held property or economic development only if premature disclosures of the information would 

prejudice the competitive or bargaining position of the body or agency;  

 

D. Discussion of labor contracts and proposals and meetings between a public agency and its negotiators. The parties must be named 

before the body or agency may go into executive session. Negotiations between the representatives of a public employer and public employees 

may be open to the public if both parties agree to conduct negotiations in open sessions;  

 

E. Consultations between a body or agency and its attorney concerning the legal rights and duties of the body or agency, pending or 

contemplated litigation, settlement offers and matters where the duties of the public body's or agency's counsel to the attorney's client pursuant 

to the code of professional responsibility clearly conflict with this subchapter or where premature general public knowledge would clearly place 

the State, municipality or other public agency or person at a substantial disadvantage;  

 

F. Discussions of information contained in records made, maintained or received by a body or agency when access by the general public 

to those records is prohibited by statute; 

 

G. Discussion or approval of the content of examinations administered by a body or agency for licensing, permitting or employment 

purposes; consultation between a body or agency and any entity that provides examination services to that body or agency regarding the content 

of an examination; and review of examinations with the person examined; and  

 

H. Consultations between municipal officers and a code enforcement officer representing the municipality pursuant to Title 30-A, section 

4452, subsection 1, paragraph C in the prosecution of an enforcement matter pending in District Court when the consultation relates to that 

pending enforcement matter.  


	00  Agenda 11-24-2014
	0  Info Sheet Conservation Commission and Tree Harvesting Workshop 11 24 14
	1  Auburn Tree Maintenance Ordinance final draft
	2  Community Cords History Fy10-14
	3  56.19 Tree Maintenance Ordinance revised attorney edits
	4  Mayors PS committee letter
	5  Auburn Conservation Commision Ordinance final draft
	6  Commission maine statute
	7  Community Cords (2)
	8  Comp plan- Natural Resources
	9  Ag Study Workshop Info Sheet 11-24-14
	10  Ag Study Worksession materials 11-24-14
	11  AG Zone Study For CC Workshop
	12  Executive Session info sheet

